
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 7 March 2023.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 15 March 2023 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Annie Mason, Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Councillor Ian Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the SKDC 
Public-I Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2023 
  

(Pages 3 - 9) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
To consider updates on the Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

 

5.   Gender Pay Gap 2021/2022 
This report provides Employment Committee with the Gender Pay Gap position for 
2021/22.  
 

(Pages 11 - 20) 

6.   Engagement Survey Key Findings 2023 
A presentation and discussion of the Employee Survey 2023 key findings and next 
steps. 
 

(Pages 21 - 42) 

7.   Work Programme 
To consider the Committee’s Work Programme. 
 

 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 

8.   Exclusion of Press and Public 
It is likely that the press and public will be excluded during discussion of the following 
agenda item because of the likelihood that information that is exempt under paragraph 1 
of Schedule 12A of the Local government Act 1972 (as amended) would be disclosed to 
them. 
 

 

9.   Chief Executive Appraisal 
 

(Pages 43 - 66) 

10.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Employment Committee 
 
Wednesday, 18 January 2023, 
10.00 am 

 
 

 
 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Anna Kelly (Chairman) 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 

 

Officers in attendance  
 
Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 
James Welbourn (Democratic Services Manager) 
Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 
Sam Fitt (Corporate Project Officer) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Officer) 

 

 

 
33. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors’ Kelham Cooke, Annie 
Mason and Sarah Trotter. 
 
Councillor Helen Crawford substituted for Councillor Kelham Cooke and Councillor 
Nikki Manterfield substituted for Councillor Sarah Trotter. 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter represented Alliance SK on the Committee today. 
 

34. Disclosure of interests 
 

There were none. 
 

35. Minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16 November 2022 were proposed, seconded, 
and AGREED as a correct record. 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

36. Updates from the previous meeting 
 

There were none discussed in the meeting today.  The Action Sheet within the 
agenda clarified that the Communications Team would review Members 
communications as part of an ongoing process and the results were to be reported 
back to Members at a future meeting. 

 
 

37. Designation of Interim Monitoring Officer 
 

This report was presented by the Deputy Leader of the Council. 
 
The terms of reference of the Employment Committee permitted a recommendation 
to the Council on the selection of a Monitoring Officer.  Full Council was to consider 
the Committee’s recommendation and the designation to the role of Monitoring 
Officer on 26 January 2023.  The above duties and responsibilities had been 
carried out by Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer, in the interim, with this being the earliest opportunity for the 
Employment Committee, and subsequently Full Council, to recommend and 
designate one of the Council’s officers as Monitoring Officer  It was recommended 
that Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring 
Officer, be designated as the Council’s Monitoring Officer on an interim basis until 
further notice. 
 
In his time as Deputy Monitoring Officer for South Kesteven District Council, Mr 
Watts had played a fundamental part in the comprehensive review of the Council’s 
Constitution and consistently provided clear and sound constitutional and 
procedural advice to Councillors and Officers, whether directly or at the Council’s 
public meetings. He assisted in the implementation of the Council’s new Councillor 
Code of Conduct and associated training for Councillors, had led assessments and 
investigations into alleged breaches of the Councillor Code of Conduct and also 
line-managed the Council’s Legal Services Team. Taking the above into account, 
Graham Watts had demonstrated the required knowledge and experience to 
undertake the role for South Kesteven District Council. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the meeting was to go into private 
session.  
 
(At 10:12 The Senior HR Officer and Project Officer left the meeting). 
 
During discussion Members took the opportunity to deliberate over Mr Watts’ 
suitability to the role based upon his experience, knowledge and competency.  The 
Committee wished the Deputy Chief Executive a speedy recovery and the Chief 
Executive provided an update on the interim measures and reallocation of duties 
that were to be put in place. 
 

4



 
 

Members discussed the requirement for the vote to be held in the public domain 
and the Democratic Services Manager provided guidance.  The vote was agreed to 
be held in the public meeting. 
 
(The Committee ended the private session of the meeting at 10:29 and Officers re-
joined the meeting) 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee agreed: 

 
a) That Council be recommended to designate Graham Watts, Assistant 

Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer, as South 
Kesteven District Council’s Monitoring Officer from 26 January 2023 
until further notice on an interim basis. 

 
Councillor Ashley Baxter requested that his vote against this resolution be recorded 
within the minutes of the meeting. 

 
 

38. Pay Policy Statement 
 

The Pay Policy Statement was presented by the Deputy Leader of the Council. 
 
The Council’s Pay Policy Statement was reviewed annually to ensure that it 
accurately reflected the Council’s position and was aligned with the outcomes and 
objectives of the Council’s Corporate Plan.  The 2022/23 pay policy statement was 
presented to Full Council on 3 March 2022.  A review of the Pay Policy Statement 
was carried out to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Localism Act 
2011. 
 
The key changes included the updating of the posts in scope under the definition of 
officers covered by the Pay Policy Statement which detailed the Council’s decision 
to adopt the Real Living Wage in March 2021 and set out the pay increase 
arrangements for our lowest grade and a number of other lower grades which were 
impacted by the Real Living Wage increase.  It also set out that these pay 
increases were an alternative to the annual cost of living pay award and not in 
addition to.  
 
The Pay Policy Statement made reference under paragraph 7.11 to a review of pay 
and reward arrangements that was taking place to ensure that our approach to pay 
and reward supported the objectives of the People Strategy to ensure that we can 
deliver “a flexible, innovative organisation” that has the “skills, resilience and 
motivation to deliver and achieve the Council’s objectives”. 
 
During discussion, the following points were raised by Members: 

 

5



 
 

• It was considered that employees were receiving a very good pension 
contribution of 23.9%. 

 

• Why was there no mention of consultation with Trade Unions.  Had this 
happened and what had been the response? 

 

• Was there a cap on termination benefits? 
 

The Senior HR Officer confirmed that the pension contribution rate had previously 
been at 17.5% for some time but now had been increased to 23.9% and the 
secondary rate increased to 0.9%.  There was an overall estimated reduction in 
pension costs to the Council of £309,000. 
 
The Chief Executive informed Members that pension contributions were dependent 
on salary level up to 12% and that there had to be sufficient funds so as to avoid a 
deficit situation.  A significant increase was required if there had been a large draw 
on funds for medical retirement, for example.  That additional contribution would be 
paid by the Local Authority.  An exit payment cap had been considered by the 
Government at £95,000 but this was withdrawn and there have been no further 
proposals at this time. 
 
The HR Manager confirmed that Trade Unions were consulted and responded 
positively.  Regular monthly meeting were held to keep representatives informed. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 
 
That the Committee:  

 
a) Recommended that the Pay Policy Statement 2023/24 be submitted to 

Full Council for approval. 
 

39. Employee Handbook 
 

The Employment Committee requested an update on the employee handbook 
which was presented by the Deputy Leader of the Council.   
 
The employee handbook was a valuable communication resource for both 
employees and the organisation and provided guidance and information relating to 
the council’s policies and procedures. 
 
Previously, the Council moved away from having documented HR policies and 
instead, commissioned an agency to provide the 55-page handbook which details 
guidance on a range of employment topics.  The HR team regularly reviewed the 
content and updated where required.  Feedback from employees was that it needed 
a complete refresh.  Employees and line managers had raised a preference to have 
a shorter handbook which signposted policies and guidance documents on specific 
subjects.  It was proposed that the next stage of the review moved to re-designing 

6



 
 

the handbook in a new format and designing HR policies.  A policy and handbook 
refresh was therefore launched and the principles for the policy review were: 

 

• Focus on informal resolutions where applicable  

• Short, simple policies  

• A new user-friendly layout  

• Supporting guides and process flowcharts to provide guidance  

• Signposting further support e.g., HR, our Employee Assistance Programme, 
related forms and documentation etc. 

• Alignment to the culture and values that we want to inculcate. 
 

The handbook refresh was underway and the shorter book provided links to policies 
which were being drafted, reviewed and updated.   
 
The Flexible Working Policy had been drafted to reflect that all employees can 
request flexible working regardless of their length of service.  Upcoming legal 
change was to make this a statutory requirement. 
 
Members welcomed the updated policy, commenting that increased flexibility would 
assist in the retention of staff. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee:  

 
a) Noted the update on South Kesteven’s Employee Handbook review. 

 
b) Approved the amended Flexible Working Policy.  

 
40. Pulse Surveys - Wellbeing and Staff Socials 

 
Presented by the Deputy Leader of the Council: 
 
At SKDC, there was a holistic approach to wellbeing which included mental health 
first aiders, an employee and members assistance programme, colleague networks 
and leading numerous wellbeing initiatives which recently had included: 
 

• White Ribbon domestic violence awareness involving a staff football game 
and pledge tree.  

• Various mental health awareness activities including Men’s Mental Health 
Week with a mental health workshop open to all colleagues.  

• Financial wellbeing support for Talk Money Week. 
 
A priority was also initiating ways of bringing our people together more.  This was a 
key action from our 2021 Engagement Survey and subsequent focus groups.  Over 
the past year we had therefore focused on bring people together from across the 
Council through: 

 

7



 
 

• Wellbeing networks which support colleagues on topics that are important to 
them including our Menopause Café and Parents Forum.  

• Holding our first staff social since pre-pandemic. We did this by holding a 
#TeamSK Awards night. 

 
The Wellbeing Survey was cascaded to all staff in November 2022 and received 85 
responses.  Some key highlights were as follows: 

 

• When asked to rate their mental wellbeing, 46% said good or very good. This 
has increased from 37% in 2021. 

• A further 41% rated their mental wellbeing as ‘okay’ meaning 87% of 
respondents answer ‘okay’ or higher.  

• 85% said they felt the Council currently provides enough support for their 
mental wellbeing which was a 25% increase on the 2021 score. 

 
Suggestions from the survey had been built into an action plan which included:  

 

• Physical wellbeing month taking place this month (January 2023) including a 
team steps challenge and working with Leisure SK to give staff more access 
to activities. The steps challenge is already a big success with 20 teams of 6 
taking part. 

• Standing desks at the new office.  

• More networks opportunities for colleagues to come together on topics of 
interest. 
 
 

On 1st December 2022, a #TeamSK Awards and Staff Celebration evening was 
held in the Guildhall.  More than 100 colleagues attended the event which included 
the presentation of employee awards, followed by a buffet and disco. 
 
Of the 62 colleagues who provided feedback having attended the event: 

 

• when asked to rate the evening out of 5, 97% rated it either 4 or 5.  

• 98% said they would be likely/very likely to attend a future social event. 

• Feedback about the awards, recognition, room décor, social opportunity and 
atmosphere were overwhelmingly positive. 

 
During discussion, the following points were made by Members: 

 

• HR were to be commended on the work done to raise staff morale and 
engagement. 

• How much was allocated within the budget for staff wellbeing? 
 
The HR Manager confirmed that £25,000 was allocated within the budget for this 
year and that a big difference in staff wellbeing was noted as a result of the recent 
focus. 

 

8



 
 

It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That Employment Committee  

 
a) noted the results of the two pulse surveys and commented accordingly 

on the findings. 
 

41. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2022 – 2023. 
 

42. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 

 
There was no other business. 

 
43. Close of Meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 10:58. 

 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

15 March 2023 
 
Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 
 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 
 

 

 

Gender Pay Gap 2021/22 
 

Report Author 

Leila Foster (Human Resources Officer) 

 leila.foster@southkesteven.gov.uk   

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report provides Employment Committee with the Gender Pay Gap position for 

2021/22.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee/Council: 

That the Employment Committee notes the outcomes of the 2021/22 Gender Pay Gap 
Reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. The financial 

considerations of the Council’s employment arrangements are included in the 

budget framework. 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 The report sets out the data that must by law be published.  The attached 

presentation suggests that there is a negative gender pay gap; However, the 

Council is continuing to work towards narrowing any gaps in the future. 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Monitoring Officer 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3 This report provides an overview of the current Gender Pay Gap information and 

therefore focuses on the protected characteristic of sex. The Equality Act 2010 

protects people from being discriminated against because of being a man or a 

woman.  Section 11 of the Equality Act defines this as a male or female of any 

age.  Sex is understood as binary – being male or female with a person’s legal sex 

being determined by what is recorded on their birth certificate based on biological 

sex. 

 

Completed by: Carol Drury, Community Engagement Manager 

12



 

Human Resources 

 

1.3 HR implications are referred to throughout the entirety of this report which 

provides an important review and reporting framework of gender pay gap 

information. 

 

Completed by: Fran Beckitt, HR Manager 

 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  In 2017 the government introduced legislation requiring all organisations with more 

than 250 employees to publish their gender pay gap each year. The gender pay 

gap shows the difference in mean and median of both hourly pay and bonus 

payments for men and women across the organisation. This differs from equal pay 

which considers the difference in pay of men and women in roles of equal value. 

The information contained within this report is for the snapshot date of 31 March 

2022 (as per the regulations). 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The Council’s mean gender pay gap for 2021/22 is negative 3.38%, (2020/21 mean 

gender pay gap was 0.45%). The mean hourly rate for males is £13.91, and the 

mean hourly rate for females is £14.38.  

3.2 The mean is defined as the average of the figures and is calculated by adding up 

all the figures and dividing by the number of staff.   

3.3 The median gender pay gap for 2021/22 is negative 11%, (2020/21 median gender 

pay gap was 0%). The median hourly rate for males is £11.56 and females is 

£12.84. 

3.4 The median is defined as the salary that lies at the midpoint and is calculated by 

ordering all salaries from highest to lowest and the median is the central figure. 

3.5 The quartile information shown in Appendix 1 is calculated by listing all salaries from 

highest to lowest and then splitting that information into four equal quarters to 

determine the percentage of male/female employees in each quartile. 

3.6 The following information, together with the presentation (Appendix 1) highlights key 

aspects of the gender pay gap reporting requirements and the breakdown of the 

information, including any difference in hourly rates and the male/female ratio for 

each of the four quartiles. 

3.7 The presentation shown at Appendix 1 captures the snapshot data for 2021/22 as 

of 31 March 2022 and comparative data for 2020/21. 

3.8 Under the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017, the 

Council is required by law to publish an annual gender pay gap report.  The 

13



information contained within this report is for the snapshot date of 31 March 2022 

(as per the regulations). 

3.9 The gender pay gap shows the difference between the average (mean or median) 

earnings of men and women.  This is expressed as a percentage of men’s earnings, 

for example in the format: ‘women earn 15% less than men’.  If used to its full 

potential, gender pay gap reporting is a valuable tool for assessing levels of equality 

in the workplace; female and male participation; and how effectively talent is being 

maximised. 

3.10 The government’s Gender Pay Gap website provides details of all organisations 

who have submitted their information for benchmarking purposes.  This shows that 

the Council’s gender pay gap compares favourably with others, including other 

public sector organisations.  

3.11 The mean gender pay gap for the whole economy (according to the October 2022 

Office for National Statistics (ONS) Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings (ASHE) 

figures) is 8.3%. At negative 3.38%, our mean gender pay gap is significantly lower 

than the whole economy. 

3.12 The median gender pay gap for the whole economy (according to the October 2022 

ONS ASHE figures) is 14.9%. At negative 11%, our median gender pay gap is 

significantly lower than the whole economy. 

3.13 The reason for the reduction in our gender pay gap to a negative figure is 

predominately due to changes in the Senior Management Team, including a male 

Director and male Assistant Chief Executive leaving the organisation during the 

year. In addition to this, three female members of the Senior Management Team 

took on additional responsibilities during 2021/22, some of which were temporary 

arrangements prior to the Corporate Restructure in April 2022. 

3.14 The statistics show that due to this change, the midpoint hourly rate for both men 

and women is no longer equal with women earning 11% more than men.  

3.15 When benchmarking against neighbouring Councils who have so far submitted their 

figures, we are in a good situation with our figures in the negative. Gedling Borough 

Council have reported their median hourly pay for women is 1.5% higher than 

men’s, however women’s mean hourly pay 3.8% lower than men’s. Rushcliffe 

Borough Council have reported their median hourly pay for women is 5.9% higher 

than men’s, and women’s mean hourly pay is 3.5% higher than men’s. Whereas at 

Lincolnshire County Council, women’s median hourly pay is 2.6% lower than men’s, 

and women’s mean hourly pay is 5% lower than men’s.   

3.16 All the figures have been calculated using the standard methodologies used in the 

Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017. 

a. The law requires that, men and women must receive equal pay for: 

• The same or broadly similar work 

• Work rated as equivalent under a job evaluation scheme or 

• Work of equal value. 

14



b. The Council is committed to the principle of equal opportunities and equal 

treatment for all employees, and it has a clear policy of paying employees 

equally for the same or equivalent work, regardless of their sex (or any other 

protected characteristic as set out in the Equality Act 2010).  As such, it 

evaluates job roles and pay grades as necessary to ensure a fair structure. 

3.17 The Council is therefore confident that its gender pay gap does not result from 

paying men and women differently for the same or equivalent work. 

3.18 The Council will continue to implement measures to maintain its current gender pay 

gap position, including:  

Promotion of several family friendly policies available for colleagues to take 

advantage of, including flexible working, menopause-friendly workplace, and hybrid 

working measures. 

Supporting managers with recruitment processes, including unconscious bias, to 

ensure our opportunities and processes are fair. 

3.19 In summary, the Council’s gender pay gap has changed from virtually no gap the 

previous year to a small negative gender pay gap but continues to compare 

favourably against the national and sector gender pay gap figures and its own 

performance in previous years.   

 

4. Appendices 
 

4.1 Appendix 1 – Summary Presentation Document 

 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Gender Pay Gap 
Report 2021/22

17



In 2017 the government introduced legislation requiring all organisations

with more than 250 employees to publish their gender pay gap each year.

The gender pay gap shows the difference in mean and median of both

hourly pay and bonus payments for men and women across the

organisation. This differs from equal pay which considers the difference in

pay of men and women in roles of equal value.

The information contained within this report is for the snapshot date of 31

March 2022 (as per the regulations).

Background to the report

South Kesteven District Council has reduced its mean gender pay gap since last year,

it is now negative 3.38% (20/21 was 0.45%).

Our median gender pay gap has also reduced and is now negative 11% (20/21 was

0%).

Gender Pay Gap at SKDC

18



-3.38%
Mean Gender pay gap 2022 
(2021 mean gender pay gap 0.45%)  

-11%
Median Gender pay gap 2022 
(2021 median gender pay gap 0%)

In terms of hourly rate this equates to:

£14.38
(2021: £13.30) 

£13.91
(2021: £13.49)

Standard mean hourly rate:

Standard median hourly rate:

£12.84
(2021: £11.36) 

£11.56
(2021: £11.36)

Difference:

Difference:

- £0.47

(2021: £0.06)

- £1.28

(2021: £0.00)

Female Male

19



UPPER QUARTILE
UPPER QUARTILE
UPPER QUARTILE

Proportion of SKDC’s female and male employees by quartile (31 March 2022)

UPPER QUARTILE

£33,000 to £115,000 130 Employees

48.5% 51.5%

(2021: 38.9%) (2021: 61.2%)

UPPER MIDDLE QUARTILE

£26,000 to £33,000 130 Employees

LOWER MIDDLE QUARTILE

£22,000 to £26,000 130 Employees

LOWER QUARTILE

£20,000 to ££22,000 130 Employees

56.2% 43.8%

(2021: 61.2%) (2021: 38.9%)

50.8% 49.2%

(2021: 54%) (2021: 56%)

37.7% 62.3%

(2021: 34.5%) (2021: 65.5%)

20



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

15 March 2023 
 
Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 
 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 
 

 

 

Employee Survey Key Findings (2023) 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

  Fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

A presentation and discussion of the Employee Survey 2023 key findings and next steps. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee/Council: 

1. Notes the findings of the Employee Survey 2023.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial considerations arising from this report.  

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report, but as an employer, 

the Council should ensure that issues affecting staff are understood and addressed. 

 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.2 Given the Council’s priority of supporting mental health and wellbeing, this year’s 

survey introduced a new wellbeing related questions and the results of these 

combined, produced a ‘wellbeing index’. This gives us a wellbeing measure, broken 

down by teams, which can direct future wellbeing actions and provide a benchmark.  

 

Completed by Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 In January 2023, South Kesteven District Council undertook an employee survey 

and invited all employees to participate. The survey was open for a period of three 

weeks. 

22



2.2 Colleagues were asked to rate 41 statements on a scale from ‘strongly agree’ to 

‘strongly disagree’.  

2.3.  Topics covered include: 

i) Teamwork. 

ii) Line Management. 

iii) Working Environment. 

iv) Innovation. 

v) Wellbeing. 

vi) Engagement and Trust. 

vii) Leadership. 

viii) Change Management. 

ix) Communication. 

x) Learning and Development.  

xi) Reward and Recognition. 

 

2.4  A lot of activity has taken place across the Council in response to the Engagement 
Survey feedback last year. This has included: 

i) Establishment of the People Panel who analysed the results, got more 
feedback and worked with their teams to help build the action plan.  

ii) Feedback suggested recognising colleagues more, so we: 

- Built a new recognition strategy 
- Re-designed the long service policy to recognise more colleagues 

in a timely way 

- Introduced #TeamSK Awards 

- Introduced #TeamSK Thank You 

iii) Following feedback that colleagues wanted more opportunities to socialise 
with other teams, the Staff Celebration and charity events such as the Breast 
Cancer Awareness cake sale were organised. 

iv) The new office has addressed many concerns relating to the working 
environment and booking desks anywhere in the office supports collaboration 
between teams which was a lower scoring area. 

v) Colleagues said they wanted more communication so the monthly all-hands 
update calls were introduced. 

vi) Colleagues asked for more wellbeing support so a number of activities and 
initiatives were introduced including the steps challenge, menopause café, 
parent’s forum and mental health workshops. We have also been conducting 
regular wellbeing pulse surveys and acting on the feedback provided.  

vii) A programme of bitesize development sessions were introduced to upskill 
on a range of topics suggested by colleagues.  

23



 

 

3. Survey Results 
 

3.1  405 colleagues (74%) took part in the survey. This is an increase on previous 

recent years; 42% in 2021/22 and 64% in 2020.  

3.2  The Engagement Index increased to the highest levels we have seen in recent 

years. The Engagement Index in this year’s survey is 70, compared to 63 in the last 

survey and 66 in 2020. 

3.3.  The Engagement Index is a measure of employee engagement. It is based on the 

following 6 survey questions: 

  i) I would recommend working for SKDC 

  ii) I am proud to be working for SKDC 

  iii) I am happy with my current job at SKDC 

  iv) I find the work I do interesting 

   v) My job makes good use of my talents, skills and experiences 

  vi) Morale at SKDC is generally good. 

3.4  The percentage of positive responses to all six of the Engagement Index questions 
improved year on year.  

3.5  For further details of the survey results, please refer to Appendix A which outlines: 

  - Engagement levels broken down by key demographics 

  - Wellbeing Index consisting of 5 wellbeing questions 

  - Highest scoring areas 

  - Areas to focus on 

  - Comments – common themes 

3.6 A deep dive into what the results are telling us will take place with the People Panel 
on 27 March 2023, and following this, team sessions will take place across the 
Council to invite all colleagues to be involved in the discussion and action planning.  

 

4. Consultation 
 

4.1 Results have been shared and discussed with the Trade Union Representatives who 

will continue to be involved in the communication and action planning stages.  

 

5. Appendices 
 

5.1  Appendix A – Engagement Survey Results Presentation 

 

 

24



ENGAGEMENT 
SURVEY RESULTS

2023

25



OVERVIEW26



E N G A G E M E N T  
I N D E X P R E V I O U S  Y E A R S  

– E N G A G E M E N T  
I N D E X  T R E N D

66
67

66

63

70

58

60

62

64

66

68

70

72

2017 2018/19 2020 2021/22 2023

R E S P O N S E  
R A T E

+7

74%
+32

2021 – 42%

70

405 employees plus 19 
responses from casuals

27



E N G A G E M E N T  I N D E X

70
+7

2021 – 63

The Engagement Index is a calculation of 6 questions that 
have the biggest impact on overall engagement:

% who either agreed or strongly 
agreed to the statements.

2023 2022 Diff

I would recommend working for SKDC 72% 54% +18%

I am proud to be working for SKDC 70% 58% +12%

I am happy with my current job at SKDC 75% 67% +8%

I find the work I do interesting 84% 78% +6%

My job makes good use of my talents, skills and experiences 76% 70% +6%

Morale at SKDC is generally good 47% 32% +15%

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Morale at SKDC is generally good

My job makes good use of my talents, skills and experiences

I find the work I do interesting

I am happy with my current job at SKDC

I am proud to be working for SKDC

I would recommend working for SKDC

46.89

76.31

83.79

74.57

69.58

71.82

20.7

12.72

11.97

12.72

21.7

16.96

32.42

10.97

4.24

12.72

8.73

11.22

Positive Neutral Negative

28



T HEMES29



W E L L B E I N G  I N D E X 63
The Wellbeing Index is a calculation of 5 questions: % who answered positively 

to the statements

I am able to achieve a good work and home life balance 78%

SKDC is committed to supporting employee’s mental wellbeing 67%

The increasing cost of living is having a negative impact on my mental 
health 39%

My workload is manageable 67%

I generally feel good about my physical and mental health. 59%

0 20 40 60 80 100

I generally feel good about my physical and mental health

My workload is managable

The increasing cost of living is having a negative impact on
my mental health

SKDC is committed to supporting employee mental
wellbeing

I am able to achieve a good work and home life balance

59

67

39

67

78

23

14

29

19

11

17

19

31

14

11

Positive Neutral Negative

30



T E A M W O R K

0 20 40 60 80 100

I believe there is a culture of teamwork at SKDC

Different departments/services work well with my team

Other members of my team/service support me with work
when I need it

I feel a valued member of my team

The people I work with treat me with respect

55

58

83

79

86

23

24

10

10

10

22

18

7

11

5

Positive Neutral Negative

Questions related to teamwork: % who either agreed or strongly agreed to 
the statements.

2023 2022 Diff

The people I work with treat me with respect. 86% 85% +1

I feel a valued member of my team. 79% 71% +8

Other members of my team/service support me with work when I need it. 83% 83% -

Different departments/services work well with my team. 58% 50% +8

I believe there is a culture of teamwork at SKDC. 55% 43% +1231



L I N E  M A N A G E R

0 20 40 60 80 100

The managers I deal with at SKDC encourage staff to…

My line manager and I have regular 1 – 1 meetings.

My line manager regularly gives me constructive feedback…

My line manager regularly says what is expected of me

My line manager treats people fairly

54

65

69

76

77

27

13

14

12

12

19

22

17

12

11

Positive Neutral Negative

Questions related to teamwork: % who either agreed or strongly agreed to 
the statements.

2023 2022 Diff

My line manager treats people fairly 77% 72% +5

My line manager regularly says what is expected of me 76% 71% +5

My line manager regularly gives me constructive feedback on how I am 
doing.

69% 70% -1

My line manager and I have regular 1 – 1 meetings. 65% 61% +4

The managers I deal with at SKDC encourage staff to explore new ways of 
thinking and looking at problems. 

54% 58% -4

32



H I G H E ST  S C O R I N G  A R E A S

87% feel 
safe at work

84% find the 
work they do 

interesting

86% said the 
people they work 
with treat them 

with respect.

The number of colleagues who 
said they would recommend 

working for SKDC has increased 
by more than 18%

17 out of 24 
teams have an 
Engagement 
Index of over 

70. 83% said other members of 
their team support them with 

work when they need it.

33



S O M E  A R E A S  T O  F O C US  O N

The highest % of neutral scores
include:

• The Council introduces changes 
effectively (28%)

• And believing there are 
opportunities for their careers to 

develop at SKDC (29%)

32% felt morale at 
SKDC is not 

generally good.

33% said they do not feel they 
are paid fairly for the job they do. 
Whilst this is a decrease from the 

47% who said this last year,  it 
remains a significant proportion 
of our people and needs a focus 

in the action plan.. 

31% said the increasing cost of 
living is having a negative 

effect on their mental health. 

34



DEMOGRAPHICS35



D E M O G R A P H I C S - E N G A G E M E N T  I N D E X

67
70

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

Part time Full time

Full Time versus Part Time

69

80

73

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

Permanent (n-=307) Fixed Term (n=22) Casual (n=19)

Contract Type

36



D E M O G R A P H I C S  – E N G A G E M E N T  I N D E X

66

74

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

Male Female

Gender

73
71

74

65

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

16-25 26-40 41-55 56+

Age

37



A V E R A G E  T I M E  S P E N T  H O M E W O R K I N G

All Staff 20% 
homeworking

60% 
homeworking

100% 
homeworking

I am proud to be 
working for SKDC

70% 85% 72% 59%

I am happy with 
my current job at 

SKDC

75% 83% 75% 53%

74% believe our approach 
to hybrid working works 

well for the organisation. A 
further 21% had ‘no view 

either way’. 

72% believe our 
approach to hybrid 

working works well for 
them personally. A 

further 19% had ‘no view 
either way’.

38



COMMENTS39



C O M M E N T S - K E Y  T H E M E S

W A Y S  O F  W O R K I N G

O F F I C E  E N V I R O N M E N T

C O M M U N I C A T I O N

‘SKDC needs to evaluate its pay scales, there are 

too many and that makes job evaluation difficult as 

the scales are very close in terms of pay and 

responsibility.’

‘Equal pay and opportunities should be 

across the board for similar jobs regardless 

of departments

P A Y
‘Since the move to the new offices #TeamSK has 
revived itself. Its great to see so many different 

faces, (some old some new) and build new 
working relationships. Working closely with people 
from other departments is a great way of learning 

more about the authority.’

‘Flexibility is important to people and we will get better 

work outcomes if we offer true flexibility and individual 

ownership of where they work, whilst supporting a hybrid 

approach.’

‘Communication from departments. I believe that people from other departments can offer 
ideas that might not have been thought about to people inside the department. Also I think in 
general people could give talks where all departments could meet up and get to know other 

people in SKDC which they may not know about.’

40



NEX T ST EPS41



N E X T  ST E P S

• Communicate the results to all colleagues.

• Deep dive with colleagues to discuss what the results are 
telling us and what actions people would like to see.

• Build team and corporate action plans. 

• Take action - deploy the plans.

• People Panel and SLT to be champions in these 
conversations and driving improvements. 

42



Document is Restricted

43

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2023
	5 Gender Pay Gap 2021/2022
	Appendix 1 - Summary Presentations Document

	6 Engagement Survey Key Findings 2023
	Appendix A - Engagement Survey Results

	9 Chief Executive Appraisal
	Appraisal Report for Employment Committee 2023
	Objectives for 2022 and 2023 & progress
	2023-2024 targets & objectives - Priority areas
	Progress Review Report - Final


